
 

THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

 

TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

NORTHBRIDGE TOWN HALL 

7 MAIN STREET - WHITINSVILLE, MA  01588 

April 22, 2019 at 7:00 PM  

REVISED 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A. 1) April 3, 2019[Special meeting]  2) April 10, 2019[Special meeting] 

 

II. PUBLIC HEARING: 7:05 B. Jonathan Shenian, Cappy’s Automotive, 1164 Main Street, Whitinsville,  

  MA 01588/Application for a Class II – Used Car Dealer’s License [Present: Jonathan Shenian] 

  

III. APPOINTMENTS: C. Joanna Schomberg, Disability Commission/Present: Bruce Frieswick 

 

IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT 

 

V. DECISIONS: 

  D. Blackstone Valley Chamber of Commerce/1) Request permission to hold the Sidewalk Sale event on  

  Church Street on Saturday, June 15, 2019 from 10 AM to 2 PM; 2) Request permission to close Church  

  Street on Saturday, June 15, 2019 from 9 AM to 3 PM beginning at Park Street to the intersection of  

  Cross Street; 3) Request for a one-day entertainment license for June 15, 2019 from 10 AM to 2 PM for a  

  DJ; 5) Request permission to hang a banner across Church Street from June 9, 2019 to June 16, 2019 to  

  advertise the Sidewalk Sale on June 15, 2019 from 10 AM to 2 PM. Present: Kathy Tonry  

E. Massachusetts Down Syndrome Congress/Request to hold a boot drive on Saturday, August 3, 2019 

from 9 AM to 3 PM at Memorial Square and Ovian Square [Rain date: Saturday, August 10, 2019] 

Present: Stephanie Bentley 

F. Family Continuity-No One Walks Alone Walk, Saturday, August 24, 2019 at 10 AM/1) Request to use 

Memorial Park; 2) Request to hold a road race beginning at Memorial Park, walking to the Police Station, 

1 Hope Street, Whitinsville, and back to Memorial Park; 3) Request for a one-day Entertainment 

License/Present: Craig Maxim 

G. Mikes Vending, LLC, 360 Main Street, Whitinsville [Lovey’s]/Application for a Common Victualler’s 

 Application/Present: Michael Griffin 

H. Open Sky Community Services [formerly Alternatives]/Request to hang a banner across Church Street 

 from Wednesday, May 22 to Sunday, June 2 to advertise their 34th Annual Valley Friendship Tour 

I. Armenian Apostolic Church/Request to hang a banner across Church Street from Sunday, August 4, 

2019 to Sunday, August 18, 2019 to advertise their Annual Picnic event to be held on Sunday, August 18, 

2019 

J. Host Community Agreement for The Botanist [Present: Phil Silverman, Attorney, The Botanist; 

Christopher Tolford, The Botanist and Town Counsel – Jonathan Silverstein, KP Law] 

  K. Northbridge I and II Solar Projects / Vote to sign PILOTS as negotiated by the Town Manager  

L. Annual Town Election [May 21, 2019] / Vote to sign warrant 

M. 2019 Annual License Renewals [Junk Dealers, Bowling & Billiards] / Vote to approve subject to the 

payment of all monies due the Town     

  

 VI. DISCUSSIONS 

N. Community Forum for a Recreational Marijuana (Cultivation) Facility – The Botanist  

proposed location is Riverdale Street [Present:  Phil Silverman, Attorney, The Botanist; Christopher 

Tolford, The Botanist and Town Counsel – Jonathan Silverstein, KP Law]  

 

VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 

VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS    

IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA 

X. CORRESPONDENCE  

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Town Clerk:  2 Hard copies □ 

Web: Post time-stamped copy □ 

 

 



 

1 

SPECIAL BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

April 3, 2019 

 

A meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman Thomas Melia at 6:00 PM, 

Northbridge Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA. Present: Board Members: Ampagoomian, 

Cannon, and Melia. Selectmen Athanas and Selectmen Nolan were absent, and it is duly noted.  Also 

Present: Adam D. Gaudette, Town Manager and Finance Committee Members: Plato Adams, Jim Barron, 

Rick Flamand, Steve Gogolinski, Jill Meagher and Chris Pilla. 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present. 

 

A. Town Meeting Warrant Articles: The Board of Selectmen held a discussion with the Finance 

Committee in regards to the proposed Lasell Field turf project. No votes were taken. 

 

A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mrs. Cannon to adjourn the public meeting. Vote yes/Board 

Members: Ampagoomian, Cannon, and Melia.  

 

Meeting Adjourned: 7:25 PM 

 

 

  

         Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

        Charlie Ampagoomian, Member 

 

 

/mjw 

  

A. 1



Board of Selectmen 

  April 3, 2019 Meeting Minutes 

2 

 

LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 

 

April 3, 2019 

 

I. OPEN MEETING 

 

II. DISCUSSIONS: A. Town Meeting Warrant Articles 

 -Documentation is filed with the Finance Committee as the Board of Selectmen 

 attended their meeting for this portion 

 

III. ADJOURN 



 

1 

SPECIAL BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

April 10, 2019 

 

A meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman Thomas Melia at 5:30 PM, 

Northbridge Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA. Present: Board Members: Ampagoomian, 

Athanas, Cannon, Melia and Nolan. Also Present: Adam D. Gaudette, Town Manager. 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present. 

 

A. Annual Town Election [May 21, 2019]/Vote to place Question(s) on the Annual Town Election 

Ballot – Turf Field Project Debt/Capital Exclusion. Chairman Melia read the ballot question aloud. 

Selectman Athanas stated that he has received concerns from resident Barry Gallant in regards to the 

chemicals used in the turf field pellets which can be harmful. It was stated that the pellets are now coated 

and no longer are made using harmful chemicals and is a better product, making his concern outdated. 

Chairman Melia sated that the friends of Lasell Field will have someone present and prepared to discuss 

the issue at the May 7, 2019 Spring Annual Town Meeting. Chairman Melia continued stating that the new 

turf, if passed, would be no worse than what is currently there and would be an improvement. A vote/Mr. 

Athanas, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to place the Turf Field Debt/Capital Exclusion question on the May 

21, 2019 Annual Town Election Ballot. Vote yes/Board members: Ampagoomian, Athanas, Cannon, Melia 

and Nolan.    

 

A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Athanas to adjourn the public meeting. Vote yes/Board 

Members: Ampagoomian, Cannon, and Melia.  

 

Meeting Adjourned: 5:52 PM 

 

 

  

         Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

         Daniel Nolan, Clerk  

 

 

/mjw 

  

A.2 



Board of Selectmen 

  April 10, 2019 Meeting Minutes 

2 

 

LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 

 

April 10, 2019 

 

I. OPEN MEETING 

 

II. DECISIONS: A. Annual Town Election [May 21, 2019]/Vote to place Question(s) on the 

 Annual Town Election Ballot – Turf Field Project Debt/Capital Exclusion 

 -Copy of ballot question 

 

III. ADJOURN 

     

   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

    
 
 
 Adam D. Gaudette 
    Town Manager 

 

TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 
OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

NORTHBRIDGE TOWN HALL 
7 MAIN STREET 

WHITINSVILLE, MASSACHUSETTS 01588 
Phone- (508) 234-2095        Fax- (508) 234-7640 

www.northbridgemass.org                          

 

April 10, 2019 
 

Via Email: legalnotices@telegram.com 

Telegram & Gazette (LEGALS) 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
Please place the following Legal Notice in the Telegram & Gazette for Monday, April 15, 2019:        
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 
   PUBLIC NOTICE 

 
Notice is hereby given under Chapter 140, Section 59 of the MGL's, that the Northbridge Board 
of Selectmen will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, April 22, 2019 at 7:05 PM, in the 
Selectmen's Meeting Room, Northbridge Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA to 
consider the application of Cappy’s Automotive, 1164 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA 01588 
[Jonathan Shenian] for a Class II License to buy/sell used cars.   

 Northbridge Board of Selectmen 
Thomas Melia, Chairman 

April 15, 2019 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Please send bill to: Northbridge Town Hall 

Town Manager's Office 
7 Main Street 
Whitinsville, MA 01588   

 

Sincerely, 

Melissa Wetherbee 
Melissa Wetherbee 
Sr. Admin. Assist./HR Asst. 
 
 
c:  Jonathan Shenian  
    Abutters [Via Certified Mail]  

B.





















NTM License Slips
Row 7

Current Status On Selectmen's Agenda for 4.22.19

Done

License ID: NTM#16055

License Type: Class II Used Car Dealer

Description: Opening a used car dealership (second hand) at 1164 Main St., Whitinsville MA

Business: Cappy's Automotive

Applicant: Johnathan Shenian

Address: Business Address: 1164 Main Street

Approval Target 07/12/18

Slip Started on: 07/09/18 6:51 PM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments:

Planning Board Approved Site Plan & issued Special Permit(s) for
RT 146 Overlay District & Aquifer Protection Zone 2

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments:

Has had a prior Class II Used Car Dealer License in Northbridge
with no issues; do not anticipate any problems with the new location

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments:

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

Required: Special Permit from ZBA, Site Plan from Planning Board,
Special Permit from Planning Board for 146 Overlay, building permit
to convert single family to commercial use, compliance with Aquifer
Protection District.

CONSERVATION
Approve:

CONSERVATION
Comments:

The Conservation Commission has issued a Determination of
Applicability on this site.



HEALTH
Approve:

HEALTH
Comments:

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:

















































mwetherbee
Typewritten Text





NTM License Slips
Row 8

Current Status On future agenda

Done

License ID: NTM#16073

License Type: Multiple: Entertainment, Memorial Park, Road Closure

Description: Sidewalk Sale June 15, 2019 from 10 AM to 2 PM ROAD CLOSED from 9 AM to 3
PM 
See attached email for details. Awaiting Entertainment License Application, Request
to use Town Common/Memorial Park Application and Road Closure Approval from
Police and DPW.

Business: Church Street Merchants

Applicant: Laura Vandenakker

Address:

Approval Target 04/04/19

Slip Started on: 04/03/19 2:08 PM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments: N/A -not applicable

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments:

There were no safety issues, last year. I would request the applicant
contact the Chief of Police to discuss public safety concerns.

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments: No issues

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

CONSERVATION
Approve:

CONSERVATION
Comments:

Not Applicable



HEALTH
Approve:

HEALTH
Comments:

Subject to all food vendors obtaining a permit to operate at this
event.

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:



mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXX

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXX





























NTM License Slips
Row 5

Current Status On Agenda for 4.22.19

Done

License ID: NTM#16076

License Type: Entertainment

Description: One-Day Entertainment License for recorded music and use of an amplification
system for their walk on August 24, 2019.

Business: Family Continuity Program, Inc.

Applicant: Craig Maxim

Address: 76 Church Street

Approval Target 04/18/19

Slip Started on: 04/16/19 11:29 AM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments: N/A -not applicable

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments: See emailed comments

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments:

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

CONSERVATION
Approve:

CONSERVATION
Comments: N/A

HEALTH



Approve:

HEALTH
Comments:

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:



mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXX

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXX

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX



mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

mwetherbee
Typewritten Text
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX





NTM License Slips
Row 6

Current Status On agenda for 4.22

Done

License ID: NTM#16075

License Type: Common Victualler

Description: Food Trailer

Business: MikesVending LLC

Applicant: Michael Griffin

Address: 360 Main Street, Whitinsville

Approval Target 04/17/19

Slip Started on: 04/12/19 12:05 PM

PLANNING
Approve:

PLANNING
Comments:

Site plan approved by Planning Board included provisions (siting)
for 1 "food truck"

POLICE
Approve:

POLICE
Comments: No issues - Lt. Labrie

FIRE Appove:

FIRE
Comments: Needs to have a fire safety inspection

BUILDING
ZONING
Approve:

BUILDING
ZONING
Comments:

CONSERVATION
Approve:

CONSERVATION
Comments:

this project is still under review by the Conservation Commission
[Meeting 4.17.19

HEALTH



Approve:

HEALTH
Comments:

Mobile Food Truck permit issued to this vendor for truck with
Registration # MA 986-012

ASSESSORS
Approve:

ASSESSORS
Comments:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Approve:

TREASURER
COLLECTOR
Comments:









NOTICE OF COMMUNITY OUTREACH MEETING  
THE BOTANIST, INC. 

  
 
Notice is hereby given that The Botanist, Inc. will hold a Community Outreach Meeting on 
April 22, 2019 at the Northbridge Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA 01588, at 7:00 
PM to discuss the proposed siting of a Marijuana Cultivation and Product Manufacturing 
Establishment on Riverdale Street, MBLU 23-5 (Gravel Pit) in accordance with M.G.L. ch. 94G 
and the Massachusetts Cannabis Control Commission’s regulations at 935 CMR 500.000 et seq.   
  
Interested members of the community are encouraged to ask questions and receive answers from 
company representatives about the proposed facility and operations.   
  
 

J. & N.



 

1 
THE BOTANIST, INC. || TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT  

 

THE BOTANIST, INC. 

 HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT FOR THE SITING OF A MARIJUANA 

CULTIVATION AND PRODUCT MANUFACTURING FACILITY IN THE TOWN OF 

NORTHBRIDGE 

 

This Host Community Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into this ____ day of 

______________, 2019 (the “Effective Date”) by and under the laws of the Town of 

Northbridge, Massachusetts, a municipal corporation duly organized under the Laws of the 

Commonwealth, acting through its Board of Selectmen, with a principal address of 7 Main 

Street, Whitinsville, MA 01588 (hereinafter the "Municipality") and The Botanist, Inc. with a 

principal office address of        (hereinafter "Licensee") 

(Municipality and Licensee, collectively the “Parties”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, Licensee intends to locate a licensed Marijuana Cultivation Facility (“MCF”) at  

    , Northbridge, MA 01588 (hereinafter the "Facility") for the 

cultivation, processing, and packaging of marijuana, and the delivery of marijuana or transfer of 

marijuana to other marijuana establishments, but not to consumers, in accordance with M.G.L. 

ch. 94G and 935 CMR 500.000 et seq. (“State Law”), and such approvals as may be issued by 

the Municipality, and other applicable regulations, as may be amended (“Local Law”); and 

 

WHEREAS, M.G.L. ch. 94G, § 3(d), and the regulations issued thereunder, require that 

Municipality and Licensee execute an agreement setting forth the conditions to have the Facility 

within it that must include, but not be limited to, all stipulations of responsibilities between the 

host community and the marijuana establishment; and 

  

WHEREAS, the Municipality recognizes this development and Facility will benefit the 

Municipality and its citizens through increased economic development, offering products in a 

safe, licensed and secure setting; additional employment opportunities for residents, and a 

strengthened local tax base; and 

 

WHERAS, the Parties intend by this Agreement to satisfy the provisions of M.G.L. c.94G, § 

3(d), applicable to the operation of a MCF in the Municipality; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises of the Parties contained herein and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties 

agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

1. Authorization.  The Parties respectively represent and warrant that: 

 



 

2 
THE BOTANIST, INC. || TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT  

 

a. Each is duly organized and existing and in good standing, has the full power, 

authority, and legal right to enter into and perform this Agreement, and the 

execution, delivery and performance hereof and thereof (i) will not violate any 

judgment, order, state law, bylaw, or regulation, and (ii) do not conflict with, or 

constitute a default under, any agreement or instrument to which either is a party 

or by which either party may be bound or affected; and 

 

b. This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered and constitutes 

legal, valid and binding obligations of each party, enforceable in accordance with 

its terms, and there is no action, suit, or proceeding pending, or, to the knowledge 

of either party, threatened against or affecting wither wherein an unfavorable 

decision, ruling or finding would materially adversely affect the performance of 

any obligations hereunder, except as otherwise specifically noted in this 

Agreement.   

 

2. Local Permitting.  Licensee agrees that it is required to obtain all local permits required 

pursuant to Massachusetts Law and the Municipality’s Bylaws and regulations.  

Provided the Municipality acts in accordance with the procedures set forth in G.L. c.44, 

§53G, Licensee shall be required to pay the reasonable costs of the employment by the 

Municipality’s boards and/or officials of outside consultants, including without 

limitation, engineers, architects, scientists and attorneys required to review the 

application for such local permits required to operate the Facility.  

 

3. Community Impact.  Licensee anticipates that the Municipality will incur additional 

expenses and impacts upon the Municipality’s road system, law enforcement, fire 

protection services, inspectional services and permitting services, public health services, 

abuse prevention efforts, and potential additional unforeseen impacts upon the 

Municipality.  Accordingly, in order to mitigate the financial impact upon the 

Municipality and use of the Municipality’s resources, the Licensee agrees to make a 

donation or donations to the Municipality, in the amounts and under the terms provided 

herein (the “Community Impact Payments”) 

 

4. Host Community Payments.   

 

a. MCF Community Impact Payments.  In the event that Licensee obtains a final 

license, or any other such license/or approval as may be required under State 

Law, for the operation of a MCF in the Municipality from the Massachusetts 

Cannabis Control Commission (“CCC”), and receives all required approvals 

from the Municipality to operate a MCF at the Facility, then Licensee agrees to 

the following: 

The Licensee shall make quarterly community impact payments to the 

Municipality in an amount equal to two percent (2.00%) of the Gross 

Sales Price of all marijuana and marijuana-infused products cultivated at 

the Facility (the “MCF Community Impact Payment”).  For purposes 

of calculation under this paragraph, Gross Sales Price shall be defined as: 



 

3 
THE BOTANIST, INC. || TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT  

 

a) with respect to  sales of marijuana or marijuana products sold to third 

parties unrelated to Licensee, the actual wholesale price paid by such 

parties; and b) with respect to sales of marijuana and marijuana products 

at Licensee’s retail sales locations, the highest unit prices for products 

wholesaled to third parties during the previous twelve months to third 

parties, calculated separately with respect to: i)flower; and ii) extracted 

products, as the case may be. The initial MCF Community Impact 

Payment shall be due 30 days after the 90th day following commencement 

of operations which shall be the date that the Licensee is issued a 

certificate of occupancy and begins the cultivation of marijuana in the 

Municipality (the “Initial MCF Payment”), and each subsequent 

payment shall be due on the same day of each quarter thereafter. 

 

b. Community Development Payment.  During the Term hereof, the Licensee 

shall pay to the Town the sum of Three and 00/100 Dollars ($3.00) per square 

foot of licensed mature, canopy space, as defined by the CCC (“Community 

Development Payment”); provided, further, that: 

  

i. The Community Development Payment shall reflect a minimum 

payment of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) (“Minimum 

Annual Community Development Payment” or “MACDP”).   

  

ii. The Community Development Payment shall be paid on an annual 

basis, commencing on or before the first anniversary following 

commencement of operations, with subsequent payments due on the 

annual anniversaries of the first such payment.  

  

iii. Beginning on the first anniversary of the first payment due under the 

immediately prior provision, the Community Development Payment 

and the MACDP each shall escalate at the rate of Two and One Half 

Percent (2 ½ %) per year. 

  

iv. The parties hereby recognize and agree that the Community 

Development Payment to be paid by the Licensee shall not be deemed 

an impact fee subject to the requirements or limitations set forth in 

G.L. c.94G, §3(d). 

 

c. Timely Payment.  Licensee acknowledges that time is of the essence with 

respect to performance of its obligations hereunder and that late payments shall 

be subject to interest at the rates prescribed by G.L. c. 59, §57, provided that no 

interest shall be due if such default is cured within ten (10) days following 

written notice of default.  If Licensee fails to cure such default within said ten 

(10) days following written notice thereof, interest shall be due from the date of 

the original default.  These payments or benefits shall be made payable to the 

Municipality at the direction of the Town Manager. 



 

4 
THE BOTANIST, INC. || TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT  

 

 

d. Application of Payments.  The Licensee acknowledges and agrees that the 

Municipality is under no obligation to use the Impact Fee and Community 

Development Payments made herein in any particular manner. 

 

5. Annual Filing. Licensee shall notify the Municipality when it commences cultivation at 

the Facility and shall submit quarterly financial statements to the Municipality, which 

shall include certification of itemized gross sales, and all other information required to 

ascertain compliance with the terms of this Agreement. The Licensee shall provide the 

Municipality access to its financial records and copies of its financial filings to the CCC, 

documenting gross revenues, and also a copy of its annual filing as a non-profit, if any, 

to the Massachusetts Office of Attorney General.  

 

The Licensee shall maintain its books, financial records and any other data related to its 

finances and operations in accordance with standard accounting practices and any 

applicable regulations and guidelines promulgated by the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts.  All records shall be retained for a period of at least seven (7) years.  

 

6. Term and Termination.  The term of this Agreement shall be for five (5) years from the 

date the Facility first opens to the public (“Term”).  All payments required hereunder 

shall remain in effect for the duration of the Term.  One year prior to the expiration of 

the Term, the parties shall meet in good faith to negotiate a new Host Community 

Agreement, which shall include a Community Development Payment and an MCF 

Community Impact Fee.  It shall be presumed that the new MCF Community Impact Fee 

will be 2.00% of the gross sales of marijuana and marijuana-infused products, and the 

burden shall be on the Licensee to demonstrate that the new Community Impact Fee 

should be a lower percentage of such gross sales.  If the parties fail to enter into a new 

Host Community Agreement prior to the expiration of the Term, this Agreement shall 

expire, and the Municipality’s support for the Facility shall be deemed to have 

terminated.   Upon voluntary or involuntary permanent termination of the use, and upon 

delivery to the Municipality of written notice of such termination, payments or benefits 

shall immediately cease; provided, however, that Licensee shall, within seven (7) days of 

such notice, pay to the Municipality the payments required under paragraph 4 hereof, 

prorated based upon the number of days that elapsed from the immediately prior 

payment date to the date of such termination of use and the amount of gross sales during 

such period.   

 

7. Acknowledgements. The Municipality understands and acknowledges that Payments 

due pursuant to this Agreement are contingent upon the Licensee’s receipt of all state 

and local approvals to operate a MCF at the Facility.  The Licensee acknowledges that 

the Municipality’s support for the Facility is contingent upon the Payments due pursuant 

to this Agreement.   

 

8. Local Property Taxes.  At all times during the Term of this Agreement, property, both 

real and personal, owned or operated by Licensee shall be treated as taxable, and all 



 

5 
THE BOTANIST, INC. || TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT  

 

applicable real estate and personal property taxes for that property shall be paid either 

directly by Licensee or by its landlord, and neither Licensee nor its landlord shall object 

or otherwise challenge the taxability of such property and shall not seek a non-profit 

exemption from paying such taxes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) if real or personal 

property owned, leased or operated by Licensee is determined to be non-taxable or 

partially non-taxable, or (ii) if the value of such property is abated with the effect of 

reducing or eliminating the tax which would otherwise be paid if assessed at fair cash 

value as defined in M.G.L. ch. 59, §38, or (iii) if Licensee is determined to be entitled or 

subject to exemption with the effect of reducing or eliminating the tax which would 

otherwise be due if not so exempted, then Licensee shall pay to the Municipality an 

amount which when added to the taxes, if any, paid on such property, shall be equal to 

the taxes which would have been payable on such property at fair cash value and at the 

otherwise applicable tax rate, if there had been no abatement or exemption; this payment 

shall be in addition to the payments made by Licensee under Section 4 of this 

Agreement.  

 

9. Community Support and Additional Obligations.  

 

a. Local Vendors – To the extent such practice and its implementation are consistent 

with federal, state, and municipal laws and regulations, Licensee shall use good faith 

efforts in a legal and non-discriminatory manner to give priority to qualified local 

businesses, suppliers, contractors, builders and vendors in the provision of goods and 

services called for in the construction, maintenance, and continued operation of the 

Facility.   

 

b. Employment/Salaries – Except for senior management, and to the extent such practice 

and its implementation are consistent with federal, state, and municipal laws and 

regulations, Licensee shall use good faith efforts in a legal and non-discriminatory 

manner to give priority to hire qualified residents of the Municipality as employees of 

the Facility.  

 

Approval of Manager - If requested by the Municipality, the Licensee shall provide to 

the Municipality, for review and approval, the name and relevant information, 

including but not limited to the information set forth in 935 CMR 500.030, of the 

person proposed to act as on-site manager of the Facility. The submittal shall include 

authorization and all fees necessary to perform a criminal history (CORI) check or 

similar background check.  The Municipality shall consider such request for approval 

within thirty (30) days following submittal to determine, in consultation with the 

Police Chief, if the person proposed is of suitable character to act as on-site manager. 

Such approval shall not be unreasonably denied, conditioned or delayed.  This 

approval process shall also apply to any change of on-site manager. 

 

d. Education - Licensee shall provide staff to participate in Municipality-sponsored 

educational programs on public health and drug abuse prevention, and to work 



 

6 
THE BOTANIST, INC. || TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT  

 

cooperatively with any of the Municipality’s public safety departments to mitigate 

any potential negative impacts of the Facility.    

 

e. The Licensee shall, at least annually, provide the Municipality with copies of all 

reports submitted to the CCC regarding Licensee’s operations at the Facility. 

 

f. The Licensee will work cooperatively with all necessary municipal departments, 

boards, commissions, and agencies ensure that Licensee’s operations are compliant 

with all of the Municipality’s codes, rules, and regulations. 

 

10. Application Support.  The Municipality agrees to submit to the CCC all documentation 

and information required by the CCC from the Municipality for the Licensee to obtain 

approval to operate a MCF. The Municipality agrees to support Licensee’s application(s) 

for a MCF with the CCC but makes no representation or promise that it will act on any 

other license or permit request in any particular way other than by the Municipality's 

normal and regular course of conduct and in accordance with their codes, rules, and 

regulations and any statutory guidelines governing them.  This Agreement does not 

prevent the Municipality from withdrawing its support of the Facility or request that the 

CCC revoke any license(s) or approval issued for the Facility, including by the CCC, 

upon expiration of the Term, if the parties have not entered into a new Host Community 

Agreement.   

 

This Agreement does not affect, limit, or control the authority of the Municipality’s 

boards, commissions, and departments to carry out their respective powers and duties to 

decide upon and to issue, or deny, applicable permits and other approvals under the 

statutes and regulations of the Commonwealth, the General and Zoning Bylaws of the 

Municipality, or applicable regulations of those boards, commissions, and departments, 

or to enforce said statutes, Bylaws, and regulations. The Municipality, by entering into 

this Agreement, is not thereby required or obligated to issue such permits and approvals 

as may be necessary for a MCF to operate in the Municipality, or to refrain from 

enforcement action against the Licensee and/or the Facility for violation of the terms of 

said permits and approvals or said statutes, Bylaws, and regulations. 

11. Security.  Licensee shall maintain security at the Facility in accordance with a security 

plan presented to the Municipality and approved by the CCC. In addition, Licensee shall 

at all times comply with State Law and Local Law regarding security of the Facility. 

Such compliance shall include, but will not be limited to: providing hours of operation; 

after-hours contact information and access to surveillance operations; and requiring 

Licensee’s agents to produce their Program ID Card to law enforcement upon request.  

To the extent requested by the Municipality’s Police Department, and subject to the 
security and architectural review requirements of the CCC, the Licensee shall work 
with the Municipality’s Police Department in determining the placement of exterior 
security cameras, so that at least two cameras are located to provide an unobstructed 
view in each direction of the public way(s) on which the facility is located. 



 

7 
THE BOTANIST, INC. || TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT  

 

Licensee agrees to cooperate with the Police Department, including but not limited to 
periodic meetings to review operational concerns, security, delivery schedule and 
procedures, cooperation in investigations, and communications with the Police 
Department of any suspicious activities at or in the immediate vicinity of the Facility, 
and with regard to any anti-diversion procedures.   

To the extent requested by the Municipality’s Police Department, the Licensee shall 
work with the Police Department to implement a comprehensive diversion prevention 
plan to prevent diversion, such plan to be in place prior to the commencement of 
operations at the Facility.  Such plan shall include, but is not limited to, (i) training 
Licensee employees to be aware of, observe, and report any unusual behavior in 
authorized visitors or other Licensee employees that may indicate the potential for 
diversion; and (ii) utilizing seed-to-sale tracking software to closely track all inventory 
at the Facility. 

12. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, without regard to the 

principals of conflicts of law thereof.  

 

13. Amendments/Waiver.  Amendments or waivers of any term, condition, covenant, duty 

or obligation contained in this Agreement may be made only by written amendment 

executed by all Parties, prior to the effective date of the amendment. 

 

14. Severability.  If any term or condition of this Agreement or any application thereof shall 

to any extent be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable by the court of competent 

jurisdiction, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining terms and 

conditions of this Agreement shall not be deemed affected thereby unless one or both 

Parties would be substantially or materially prejudiced.  Elimination or reduction of any 

payment required hereunder shall constitute substantial or material prejudice to the 

Municipality.  If any term or condition deemed unlawful concerns the right of the 

Municipality to the payment and use of any part of the Annual Payments, the parties 

agree that such part of the Annual Payments paid and to be paid to the Municipality 

hereunder shall constitute a grant or donation for the purposes set forth herein, and shall 

be held and used accordingly. Further, the Licensee agrees it will not challenge, in any 

jurisdiction, the enforceability of any provision included in this Agreement; and, the 

Licensee shall pay for all reasonable fees and costs incurred by the Municipality in 

defending and enforcing this Agreement. 

 

15. Successors/Assigns. This Agreement is binding upon the Parties hereto, their successors, 

assigns and legal representatives. The Municipality shall not assign or transfer any 

interest or obligations in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the 

Licensee, which shall not be unreasonably delayed, conditioned, or withheld. The 

Licensee shall not assign, sublet or otherwise transfer any interest, its rights nor delegate 

its obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the 

Municipality, which shall not be unreasonably delayed, conditioned, or withheld.    

 



 

8 
THE BOTANIST, INC. || TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT  

 

16. Force Majeure.  If and to the extent that either party is prevented from performing its 

obligations hereunder by an event of force majeure, such party shall be excused from 

performing hereunder and shall not be liable in damages or otherwise, and the Parties 

shall instead negotiate in good faith with respect to appropriate modifications of the 

terms hereof. For purposes of this Agreement, the term force majeure shall mean the 

supervening causes described here, each of which is beyond the reasonable control of the 

affected party: acts of God, fire, earthquakes, floods, explosion, actions of the elements, 

war, terrorism, riots, mob violence, a general shortage of labor, equipment, facilities, 

materials, or supplies in the open market, failure of transportation, strikes, lockouts, 

actions of labor unions, condemnation, laws or orders of any governmental or military 

authorities, or any other cause similar to the foregoing, not within the control of such 

party obligated to perform such obligation.  

 

17. Attorney’s Fees.  Licensee shall reimburse the Municipality for reasonable attorney fees 

incurred by the Municipality in conjunction with the Facility, except as a result of the 

willful or intentional misconduct of the Municipality, including in connection with the 

negotiation of this Agreement.  Such reimbursement shall be made within fourteen days 

after written request by the Municipality. 

 

18. Indemnification.  The Licensee shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Municipality 

harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, actions, causes of 

actions, defenses, and/or proceedings, including resultant costs and attorney’s fees, except 

as a result of the willful or intentional misconduct of the Municipality (collectively, the 

“Claims”), brought against the Municipality, its agents, departments, officials, employees, 

and/or successors, by any third party arising from or relating to the Facility or the 

Agreement.  Such indemnification shall include, but shall not be limited to, all reasonable 

fees and reasonable costs of attorneys and consultants of the Municipality’s choosing 

incurred in defending such claims, actions, proceedings or demands. The Licensee agrees, 

within thirty (30) days of written notice by the Municipality, to reimburse the Municipality 

for any and all costs and fees incurred in defending itself with respect to any such claim, 

action, proceeding or demand. 

 

19. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire integrated agreement between 

the Parties with respect to the matters described. This Agreement supersedes all prior 

agreements, negotiations and representations, either written or oral, and it shall not be 

modified or amended except by a written document executed by the Parties hereto. 

 

20. Notices. Except as otherwise provided herein, any notices, consents, demands, requests, 

approvals, or other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall be 

in writing and delivered by hand or mailed postage prepaid, return receipt requested, by 

registered or certified mail or by other reputable delivery service, and will be  effective 

upon receipt for hand or said delivery and three days after mailing, to the other Party at 

the following address: 
  
 To the Municipality:   



 

9 
THE BOTANIST, INC. || TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT  

 

 
 Town of Northbridge 
 c/o Town Manager  
 7 Main Street 
 Whitinsville, MA 01588 

 

    To the Licensee:   

 

 The Botanist, Inc. 

 TBD 

 

  

21. Third-Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual 

relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either Municipality 

or the Licensee. 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

10 
THE BOTANIST, INC. || TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 

HOST COMMUNITY AGREEMENT  

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have duly executed this Host Community Agreement on 

the date set forth above. 

 

 

TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE THE BOTANIST, INC. 

 

 

 

_______________________________  _________________________________ 

Name:       Name:  

Title:        Title:  

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



The Botanist, Inc:  
Cultivation and Product 
Manufacturing Proposal



1

THE BOTANIST  
OVERVIEW

3



THE BOTANIST MASSACHUSETTS
The Botanist is an operational medical marijuana company and adult use retail marijuana 
applicant located in Central Massachusetts. We were one of the original medical 
marijuana applicants - originally operating as Prime Wellness Centers, Inc. – that 
received licensure from the Department of Public Health in early 2015. The  Botanist is 
wholly owned by Acreage Holdings and is committed to serving  patients and customers 
in Central Massachusetts.

Existing footprint of The Botanist in Massachusetts:

○ Sterling - 36,000 sq ft medical marijuana cultivation and processing facility
○ Worcester - operational medical dispensary, applicant for adult use retail
○ Leominster - medical dispensary opening in Q2 2019
○ Shrewsbury - medical dispensary opening in Q2 2019, applicant for adult use retail



8

THE BOTANIST: EXCEPTIONAL PEOPLE
A National Brand Bringing Together Industry Leaders to Produce theHighest Quality Products

Cultivation Facility/ Extraction Lab –CA

10,000 sq. ft. facility opened in 2017
Cultivation Facility – PA

30,000 sq. ft. facility opened inJuly 2018
CultivationFacility – NY

90,000 sq. ft. facility opened in2018

OUR MISSION: Hire Local, Use Local

○ Build out: all local general contractors,engineering and design firms
○ Supplies: talks with local farms to supply nutrients/soil for cultivation
○ Support for and interaction with local “craft” growers to promote their growth
○ Ongoing: all employees in cultivation and dispensary from local community



ACREAGE LEADERSHIP

John Boehner
Board Member
Experience:
Speaker of the House, United States  
House of Representatives
Board Member, Reynolds American
Senior Strategic Advisor, Squire  
Patton Boggs

Kevin Murphy
Chairman & CEO
Experience:
Founder of Stanfield Capital  
Tandem Global Partners  
Gleacher & Co
Schroders
Lazard

Bill Weld
Board Member

Experience:
Governor of Massachusetts
Head of Department of Justice Criminal Division  
Member, Council on Foreign Relations

Robert Daino
Chief Operating Officer

Experience:
WCNY Public
Media
Lockheed Martin  
General Electric

Chris Tolford
Manager, CT & MA Operations

Experience:
Wellness Connection of Maine  
Albin, Randall & Bennett,  
CPAs



THE BOTANIST PLEDGE

● Hire Local, Be Local

○ We will strive to integrate directly into the community by hiring local, utilizing local 
vendors, and supporting the local community and non-profits.

● Limited traffic

○ The cultivation and product manufacturing facility will not have heavy trucks coming in
and out. The  majority of the traffic will be employees going to and leaving work. The 
general public will not be allowed onsite.

● Safety and Security

○ We have invested in state-of-the-art security systems and personnel to ensure the 
security of the facility, our team, and surrounding community.

● Odor

○ Our facility will have sophisticated and professionally designed ventilation systems. We 
use carbon filtration and other systems to help eliminate any possibility of odor.



THE BOTANIST, INC: PRODUCT SUITE
A health and wellness brand rooted in education, community and experience.

1. Examples of recommended product and branding for NY markets. Final art and SKU’s tobe determined.



2

Proposed 
Location

12



THE BOTANIST: OUR VISION
By 2020 a Robust Cultivation and Manufacturing Site

The Botanist needs additional space to meet the need of the adult usemarket in Massachusetts and 
seeks to apply for a Tier 11 Cultivator License and Product Manufacturing License. Our proposed location 
on Riverdale Street,  MBLU 23-5  (the gravel pit) is located on an industrial parcel that is well suited for such 
a use. The use on the parcel will not be located within 500 feet of any schools, universities, childcare facility, 
playground, ball field, youth center, or public library. We propose the following:

PHASE 1 -2019
⇢ 50,000 square foot Greenhouse
⇢ 50,000 square foot Product ManufacturingFacility
⇢ 50 - 60 jobs

PHASE 2 - 2020 andbeyond
⇢ 100,000 additional square feet
⇢ Additional 20 - 30jobs



13

The Botanist, Inc: Medical Cultivation Facility
STERLING,MA



3

Standard Operating
Procedures (SOPs)

16



Ensuring the safety of our customers, patients, abutters, and the surrounding community is a chief priority of our team.  As such, we 
have implemented a comprehensive security plan to protect interior and exterior safety, prevent nuisance and diversion, and 
continually refine our protocol to ensure success.

SECURITY

3

1 2 3 54
CONTROL 
FACILITY 
ACCESS 
POINTS

MAINTAIN 
INTERIOR 
SAFETY OF 

CUSTOMERS 
AND STAFF

PREVENT 
DIVERSION TO 

UNAUTHORIZED 
PARTIES

PREVENT 
NUISANCE TO 
NEIGHBORS 

AND THE 
COMMUNITY

CONTINUALLY 
REFINE 

PROTOCOL TO 
ENSURE 
SUCCESS



SECURITY

3

•  Absolutely no members of the public will ever be 
permitted on the site. Only authorized agents, regulators, 
security personnel, emergency personnel, and 
contractors will be granted access on site.

• Perimeter security, including motion sensors, alarms, 
and video surveillance, will be installed to protect the site 
from unauthorized intrusion.  Intrusion detection sensors 
will be placed on all exit and entry points, including 
windows.

• Multiple redundant alarm systems will be operating to 
ensure that the system does not fail in the case of power 
outage.  

• Live security guards will monitor camera feeds on site 
during all hours of operation. Additionally, feeds will be 
remotely monitored by a security monitoring team and 
have the ability to loop in to the Northbridge Police 
Department at any given time. 

• Marijuana and marijuana products will be located in 
locked, secure vaults under video surveillance. Only 
designated employees will have access to the safe.

• All products will be packaged in tamper- or child-resistant 
packaging. They will be labeled with information including: 
the origin of the product; name of the product and product 
identity; type of marijuana used to produce the product; a 
list of ingredients including the full cannabinoid profile; a 
statement about serving size and servings per container; 
directions for use; and a statement that the product has 
been tested for contaminants including the date of testing.

• Duress, panic, and hold-up alarms will be located 
strategically throughout the facility.



PREVENTING DIVERSION

3

In the event The Botanist discovers any of 
its agents intentionally or negligently sold 
marijuana to an individual under the age of 
21 or not in the program, the agent will be 
immediately terminated and the CCC will 
be promptly notified.

The Botanist will not engage in any 
marketing, advertising, or branding 
practices that are targeted to, deemed to 
appeal to, or portray minors under 21 
years of age.

The Botanist will not hire any individuals 
who are under the age of 21 or who have 
been convicted of distribution of controlled 
substances to minors.

The Botanist will not manufacture or sell 
any edible products that resemble a 
realistic or fictional human, animal, or fruit, 
including artistic, caricature, or cartoon 
renderings.

Any marketing, advertising, and branding 
materials for public viewing will include a 
warning stating, “For use only by adults 
21 years of age or older. Keep out of the 
reach of children.” 

The Botanist’s website will require all 
online visitors to verify they are 21 years of 
age or older prior to accessing the website.



PREVENTING NUISANCE

3

Our success as a cannabis operator is a direct reflection of our commitment to and work with the surrounding 
community.

Although members of the public will be strictly prohibited from the site, video and live surveillance will be 
available to ensure that the establishment does not create nuisance conditions in the parking area, sidewalk, 
street, and area surrounding the premises and adjacent properties.  No cannabis or cannabis products will be 
visible from the exterior of the site. 

The following behaviors will not be permitted on site –

• Any disturbance of the peace
• Public consumption of cannabis
• Illegal drug activity under state or local law
• Littering
• Excessive loitering  or pedestrian / vehicular traffic
• Illegal parking or violations of state and local traffic laws
• Queuing of patrons or other obstructions of the public or private way

The Botanist will comply with all reasonable requirements from the Town and will work diligently and in good 
faith to address any reasonable nuisance concerns brought to its attention by members of the community.



BENEFITS TO NORTHBRIDGE

3

JOBS:  At full capacity, The Botanist will create several dozen full-time and part-time careers. We are 
committed to hiring local and providing employees with a living wage, full benefits, and substantial 
training.

REVENUE:  The Botanist will sign a Host Community Agreement with the Town, providing annual 
revenue that the Town can designate to priorities of its choosing.

ECONOMIC GROWTH: We are committed to utilizing local vendors, contractors, and other ancillary 
services.

RESPONSIBILITY.  Our team is comprised of experienced professionals who will be thoroughly 
background checked and scrutinized by the state regulatory authorities. 



Questions?

12



 

AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENT IN LIEU OF PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES UNDER 
M.G.L. c. 59, § 38H(b) 

 
THIS AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES UNDER M.G.L. c. 59, § 

38H(b) (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of April 22, 2019 by and between 
Syncarpha Northbridge I, LLC (“Developer”), the TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE, a municipal 
corporation duly established by law and located in Worcester County, Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts (the “Town”).  Developer and the Town may also be referred to collectively as 
the “Parties,” and individually as a “Party.”  

WHEREAS, Developer plans to build, own and operate a metered, ground-mounted 
solar photovoltaic facility, anticipated to have an estimated nameplate capacity of approximately 
7.495 megawatts (“MW”), direct current (“DC”), and 4.98 MW, alternating current (“AC”), 
(such facility, as further defined below, the “Project”), on an approximately 30+/- acre portion of 
an approximately 95.75+/- acre parcel of land owned by Whitinsville Redevelopment Trust 
(“Property Owner”), and located at 0 Linwood Avenue, which land is shown on the Town of 
Northbridge Assessors’ Maps as MBLU 14/15 and having a parcel identification number of 
1496, copies of which Assessors’ Map is attached hereto as Exhibit A (said 30+/- acre portion of 
land only, hereinafter referred to as the “Property”);  

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the Parties that Developer make annual payments to the 
Town for the term of this Agreement in lieu of personal property taxes for the Project in 
accordance with G.L. c.59, §38H(b), and any and all applicable regulations promulgated pursuant 
thereto; and  

WHEREAS, except as provided herein, the Parties intend that, during the term of the 
Agreement, Developer will not be assessed for personal property taxes for the Project, and this 
Agreement will provide for the exclusive payments in lieu of such taxes during the term hereof; 
provided, however, that this Agreement does not include and shall not affect any other taxes or 
fees that may be owed now or in the future by Developer and Property Owner, including, but not 
limited to, real property taxes for the Property (including buildings and, excluding the Project, 
fixtures and improvements located thereon), and taxes for personal property other than the 
Project, which taxes, if any, shall continue to be assessed by the Town in accordance with 
applicable laws and regulations.  

NOW THEREFORE, in exchange for the mutual commitments and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties agree 
as follows: 
 

1. Payment in Lieu of Personal Property Taxes.  Developer agrees to make annual 
payments to the Town in lieu of personal property taxes attributable to the Project for a period of 
twenty (20) consecutive fiscal years (July 1-June 30).  Each annual payment will be in the 
amount of $7,500 per MW (DC).  Assuming a Project nameplate capacity of 7.495 MW (DC) 
and 4.98 MW (AC), annual payments shall be as set forth in Exhibit B (each, an “Annual 
Payment”), which are subject to adjustment under Paragraph 2 for changes in such capacity.  

K.

mwetherbee
Highlight



 

Each Annual Payment will be paid on a fiscal year basis in four (4) equal (or, in the Town’s 
reasonable discretion in order to conform payments to the Board of Assessor’s valuation of the 
Project, slightly unequal) quarterly installments, each of which shall be due on or before August 
1, November 1, February 1, and May 1 (each a “Quarterly Payment Date”) of each fiscal year.  
Each quarterly payment amount and due date will be noted on a tax bill to be issued by the Town 
to the Developer, provided that any failure of the Town to issue such a bill shall not relieve 
Developer of its obligation to make timely payments hereunder, and provided further that if no 
bill is issued, Developer shall be in compliance with its payment obligations if it makes all 
quarterly installments (for which no bill has been issued by the Town) in equal installments by 
the dates aforesaid.    

 
Annual Payments shall commence with the first quarterly installment due on the first 

Quarterly Payment Date immediately following the quarter in which the Project achieves 
commercial operation and is delivering power to the electrical distribution system (the 
“Commencement Date”); and shall end with the last quarterly installment due on May 1 (the last 
Quarterly Payment Date of a fiscal year) of the twentieth (20th) fiscal year after the 
Commencement Date, provided that if the Commencement Date was a date other than August 1, 
the Annual Payment for the fiscal year in which the Commencement Date occurs shall be pro-
rated for such fiscal year, and the term of this Agreement shall be extended so that the Town 
receives a total of eighty (80) quarterly installment payments.   

 
Other than as provided in Paragraph 2, Developer agrees that the Annual Payments will 

not be reduced for any reason (including without limitation on account of a depreciation factor, 
revaluation or reduction in the Town’s tax rate, or legislative action fixing or otherwise setting 
taxes or payments in lieu thereof for photovoltaic solar facilities), and the Town agrees that the 
Annual Payments will not be increased (including on account of an inflation factor, revaluation or 
increase in the Town’s tax rate or assessment percentage beyond that anticipated by the Parties).  
Developer hereby waives, during the term of this Agreement, any rights it may have otherwise 
had in the absence of this Agreement to seek, for any reason and in any forum, an abatement or 
reduction of taxes assessed for the Project, and therefore, hereby waives any such rights with 
respect to any payments in lieu of taxes assessed in accordance with the provisions of this 
Agreement. 
 

2. Adjustments to Annual Payments.  Adjustments to Annual Payments shall be 
made, if at all, only in accordance with this Paragraph 2. 

 
a. DC Nameplate Capacity Changes.  If, as of the date Developer receives from the 

local electric utility authorization to interconnect and commence operations of the 
Project (the “Commercial Operations Date”), the installed DC nameplate capacity of 
the Project (the “DC Capacity”) is more or less than the DC Capacity set forth in 
Paragraph 1, the Annual Payments reflected in Exhibit B shall be increased (if more) 
or decreased (if less) by the unit price of $7,500.00 per MW (DC) for each MW (or 
portion thereof) change in DC Capacity.  If after the Commercial Operations Date, as 
a result of the addition, replacement or enhancement of Project equipment, 
improvements or other property, the DC Capacity is increased, the Annual Payments 



 

shall be increased for each MW increase in DC Capacity.   
 
 
b. Notice of Commercial Operations Date and Changes in Capacity.  Within fourteen 

(14) days following the Commercial Operations Date, Developer shall provide written 
notice to the Town certifying such date and the DC Capacity of the Project as installed 
as of that date.  Within fourteen (14) days of the addition, replacement, or 
enhancement of Project equipment, improvements or other property resulting in a 
change to the DC Capacity, Developer shall provide written notice to the Town 
describing, in reasonable detail, the equipment, improvements or other property 
added, replaced, or enhanced; the resulting change in DC Capacity; and a proposed 
adjustment to Annual Payments in accordance with Paragraph 2. 

 
3. Inventory.  Attached to this Agreement as Exhibit C is a preliminary State Tax 

Form 2 (Form of List) for the Project, representing the preliminary inventory (the “Inventory”) of 
the improvements, equipment and other property anticipated to be incorporated in the Project, 
together with estimated fair market values for each improvement and item of equipment or 
property.  Only property necessary or incidental to the production of electricity shall be included 
in the Project and Inventory.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the 
Project, and thus the Annual Payments hereunder, shall not include (i) buildings or, (ii) excluding 
the Project, fixtures and improvements constituting “Real Property,” as defined in M.G.L. c. 59, § 
2A(a).   

 
Within thirty (30) days after the Commercial Operations Date, Developer shall submit an 

updated Inventory (if different from the Inventory in Exhibit C) using State Tax Form 2 (Form of 
List).  Developer will update the Inventory annually as of January 1 of each year, and an 
updated written Inventory, referred to as an Annual Inventory Update, will be provided to the 
Town on or before February 1 of each year.  Failure of Developer to include all equipment and 
other personal property in the Inventory or any Inventory Update shall constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement, subject to the termination and cure provisions set forth in Section 14.  
The Town acting through its officers, employees, consultants, agents and attorneys, will have the 
right periodically, during normal business hours and upon reasonable advance notice to 
Developer, to inspect the Project and review documents in possession of Developer that relate to 
the Project and the Inventory to verify the Inventory and Developer’s compliance with this 
Agreement. 

 
In addition, the Developer shall, upon signing this Agreement, provide the Town with a 

copy of Developer’s interconnection application filed with the local electric utility (or if such 
application has not been filed, within fourteen (14) days after it is filed), and a copy of its 
interconnection agreement with such utility within fourteen (14) days after it has been signed by 
the utility and Developer.  Developer shall also provide the Town any future amendments to 
such application or interconnection agreement within fourteen (14) days after the amendments to 
the application are filed by the Developer and the amendments to the interconnection agreement 
are signed by the utility and Developer.    
 



 

4. Payment Collection.  In addition to such rights and remedies available in this 
Agreement, all statutory rights and remedies available to the Town for the collection of taxes 
shall also be available to the Town for the collection of Annual Payments hereunder, including, 
but not limited to, the rights and remedies provided in G.L. c. 59 and G.L. c. 60, and all such 
rights and remedies are hereby reserved notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein.  
Accordingly, for example, if and to the extent deemed necessary by the Town for assessment or 
collection of Annual Payments, the Project may, at the Town’s election, be deemed personal 
property unintentionally omitted from annual assessment under G.L. c. 59, § 75, or “Real 
Property,” as defined in G.L. c. 59, § 2A(a).  All late payments shall accrue interest at 14 
percent per annum.  Furthermore, if Developer breaches its payment obligations under this 
Agreement, Developer shall pay the reasonable attorneys’ fees, court and other costs incurred by 
the Town in the collection of the unpaid amounts.   

 
5. Tax Status.  The Town agrees that during the term of this Agreement, the Town 

will not assess Developer for any personal property taxes for the Project, and the Town agrees 
that this Agreement will exclusively govern the payments of such taxes (and payments in lieu of 
such taxes) that Developer will be obligated to make to the Town with respect to the Project, 
provided, however, that this Agreement will not affect any other taxes owed by the Developer or 
Property Owner, including, but not limited to, real property taxes for the Property (including any 
buildings and, excluding the Project, fixtures and improvements located thereon), and taxes for 
personal property not incorporated into the Project, which taxes, if any, shall be assessed in 
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.  Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to 
the contrary in this Agreement, upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, the 
Town shall not be bound by any valuation/payment amount, schedule or formula set forth in this 
Agreement in the assessment of future taxes for the Project after the date of such expiration or 
termination.    
 

6. Assignment.  Developer shall not assign this Agreement in whole or in part 
without the advance written consent of the Town, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
except that Developer may (i) collaterally assign the Agreement to an entity providing financing 
for construction, operation or maintenance of the Project with advance written notice to the 
Town, provided that Developer shall not be relieved of its obligations hereunder; or (ii) with 
advance written notice to the Town, assign the Agreement to an entity no less creditworthy than 
Developer to whom Developer has sold or transferred all its interests in the Project, provided that, 
upon an assignment under clause “ii,” above, Developer shall be deemed as having represented 
and warranted to the Town that the assignee has the financial ability to comply with all 
obligations of Developer hereunder; and provided further that, notwithstanding the foregoing, 
other than a collateral assignment under clause “i,” above, Developer shall not assign this 
Agreement to any person or entity that is not eligible to enter into this Agreement under G.L. c. 
59, § 38H(b), and/or who is unable to make all the representations and warranties of Developer 
contained herein.   
 

7. Invalidity.  The Parties understand and agree that this Agreement shall be void 
and unenforceable if (a) this Agreement, or any material portion of this Agreement, is determined 
or declared by a court or agency of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, void, or unenforceable; 



 

(b) Developer is determined or declared by a court or agency of competent jurisdiction to not be a 
“generation company” or “wholesale generation company” as those terms are used and/or defined 
in G.L. c. 59 § 38H(b), and G.L. c. 164 § 1; and/or (c) this Agreement has not been approved by 
Town Meeting.  In the event this Agreement is declared void in accordance with this Paragraph 
7, any payments due and/or made to the Town before the date of such declaration shall be and 
remain property of the Town, and to the extent permitted by law, shall be deemed full satisfaction 
of the taxes in lieu of which they were made.  
 

8. Notices.  All notices, consents, requests, or other communications provided for or 
permitted to be given hereunder by a Party must be in writing and will be deemed to have been 
properly given or served upon the personal delivery thereof, via courier delivery service, or by 
mail in a manner of delivery that results in a confirmation of receipt, such as certified mail or 
federal express.  Such notices shall be addressed or delivered to the Parties at their respective 
addresses shown below.  
 
 To: Developer  
  

Syncarpha Northbridge I, LLC 

250 West 57th Street, Suite 701  

New York, New York 10107 

 
 
 To: Town of Northbridge 
 

Attn: Robert Fitzgerald 
Northbridge Town Assessor 

7 Main Street 

Whitinsville, MA 01588 

 
Any such addresses for the giving of notices may be changed by either Party by giving 

written notice as provided above to the other Party.  Notice given by counsel to a Party shall be 
effective as notice from such Party.  

9. Applicable Law.  This Agreement will be made and interpreted in accordance 
with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts without regard to the law of “conflicts of 
laws.”  The Parties each consent to the jurisdiction of the Massachusetts courts or other 
applicable agencies of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts regarding any and all matters, 
including interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement or any of its provisions.  Venue for all 
actions brought hereunder shall be (solely) the state courts located in Suffolk County, 
Massachusetts, or if different, the county in which the Town is located.  Developer agrees to 
accept service of process, including civil complaints, by certified mail at the address indicated in 



 

Paragraph 8 (Notices). 
 

10. Force Majeure.  As used herein, an event of Force Majeure is an event beyond 
the reasonable control of the Parties, and includes, without limitation, the following events:  
 

a. Acts of god including floods, winds, storms, earthquake, fire or other natural calamity;  
 

b. Acts of War or other civil insurrection or terrorism; or  
 

c. Taking by eminent domain by any governmental entity of all or a portion of the 
Property or the Project.  

 
In the event that a Force Majeure occurs during the term of this Agreement that renders the 

Project wholly or substantially unable to produce electricity for a period of more than ninety (90) 
days, Developer may, at its election, terminate the Agreement following expiration of such 90-
day period by written notice to the Town, provided that such termination shall be effective no 
earlier than the end (June 30) of the fiscal year in which said notice is received by the Town, and 
provided further that the Project will thereafter be assessed and taxed as if this Agreement does 
not exist.   

Notwithstanding the foregoing or any Force Majeure event, Developer shall continue to 
make Annual Payments without abatement or reduction until this Agreement is terminated, if at 
all, in accordance with this Paragraph 10.    

11. Certification of Tax Compliance.  Pursuant to G.L. c. 62C, § 49A, Developer by 
its duly authorized representative, certifies under pains and penalties of perjury that it has 
complied with all laws of the commonwealth relating to taxes, reporting of employees and 
contractors, and withholding and remitting of child support.  

 
12. Covenants, Representations and Warranties of Developer.  

a. During the term of the Agreement, Developer will not do any of the following: 

1. convey by sale, lease, assignment or otherwise any interest in the 
Property or Project to any tax-exempt entity or organization, including 
without limitation a charitable organization pursuant to G.L. c.59, § 5 
(Clause Third); 

2. fail to pay the Town all amounts due hereunder when due in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement;  

3. seek, for any reason, an abatement or reduction of any of the 
amounts assessed in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, and 
Developer hereby waives, during the full term of this Agreement, any 
rights it may have otherwise had to seek such an abatement or reduction; 
or  



 

4. seek to amend or terminate this Agreement on account of the 
enactment of any law or regulation or a change in any existing law or 
regulation the intent or effect of which is to fix or limit in any way the 
method for calculating payments-in-lieu-of-taxes for renewable energy 
facilities. 

 
  b. Developer represents and warrants: 

1. It is a corporation or other business entity duly organized, validly 
existing and in good standing under the laws of the state in which it was 
formed, and if a foreign corporation, is registered with the Massachusetts 
Secretary of State, and has full power and authority to carry on its business 
as it is now being conducted. 

2. This Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation 
of Developer enforceable in accordance with its terms, except to the extent 
that the enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency 
or other laws affecting other enforcement of creditors’ rights generally or 
by general equitable principles.   

3. It has taken all necessary action to authorize and approve the 
execution and delivery of this Agreement. 



 

4. The person executing this Agreement on behalf of Developer has 
the full power and authority to bind it to each and every provision of this 
Agreement.  

5. Developer is a “generation company” or “wholesale generation 
company” as those terms are used and defined in G.L. c. 59, § 38H(b) and 
G.L. c. 164 § 1. 

6. Developer does not qualify for a manufacturing classification 
exemption pursuant to G.L. c. 59, § 5(16)(3). 

7. The documents and information furnished by Developer to the 
Town in connection with this Agreement, including but not limited to the 
Inventory and any update thereto, is true, accurate and complete in all 
material respects. 

8. The performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement 
will not violate or result in a breach or default of any agreement or 
instrument to which Developer is a party or to which Developer is 
otherwise bound. 

13. Entire Agreement.  The Parties agree that this is the entire, fully integrated 
Agreement between them with respect to payments in lieu of taxes for the Project, and that there 
are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement.  

 
14. Termination by Town.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 

Agreement, the Town may terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) days written notice to 
Developer if: 

 
a. The Developer fails to make timely payments required under this Agreement, 

unless such payment is received by the Town within the 30-day notice period with 
interest as stated in this Agreement, provided, however, that the Town may 
nonetheless terminate this Agreement if such failure occurs more than three times 
in any rolling 365-day period, even if each such failure is cured within the 30-day 
notice period; 

b. The Developer has filed, or has had filed against it, a petition in Bankruptcy, or is 
otherwise insolvent;  

c. The Developer otherwise materially breaches this Agreement, unless such breach 
is cured within the 30-day notice period, including payment to the Town of any 
damages arising from such breach, provided, however, that the Town may 
nonetheless terminate this Agreement if Developer materially breaches this 
Agreement more than three times in any rolling 365-day period, even if each such 
breach is cured within the 30-day notice period; and/or 



 

d. The Developer’s representations set forth in Paragraph 12 were untrue, inaccurate, 
or incomplete in material respects at the time they were made. 

15. Payment of Town Costs.  Upon execution of this Agreement, the Developer shall 
pay the Town by bank or certified check, or wire transfer, the lump-sum minimum amount of 
$5,000, representing payment of costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, incurred by the 
Town in the negotiation of this Agreement. 
 

 16. Developer’s federal tax identification number: 83-1765699 
 
 
  



 

Executed under seal by the undersigned as of the day and year first written above, each of 
whom represents that it is fully and duly authorized to act on behalf of and bind its principals.  

SYNCARPHA NORTHBRIDGE I, LLC 
 
 
By: __________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________   
 
Date: ________________________ 

 

 

TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 
 
 
By: __________________________   By: __________________________                    
 
Title: ________________________   Title: ________________________  
  
Date: ________________________   Date: ________________________                    
 
  
By: __________________________   By: __________________________                    
 
Title: ________________________   Title: ________________________  
  
Date: ________________________   Date: _________________________ 

 
By: __________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________   
 
Date: ________________________ 
 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

THE PROPERTY 
 

 



 

EXHIBIT B 

ANNUAL PAYMENTS SCHEDULE 

 

Contract 
Year

System Size
MW (DC)

Annual 
Amount per 

MW (DC)

Annual 
Ammount

Quarterly 
Payment

1 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
2 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
3 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
4 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
5 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
6 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
7 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
8 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
9 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053

10 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
11 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
12 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
13 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
14 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
15 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
16 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
17 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
18 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
19 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053
20 7.495 $7,500 $56,213 $14,053



 

EXHIBIT C 

FORM OF LIST 

Town of Northbridge Assessors 
7 Main Street 
Whitinsville, MA 01588 
 
 
Syncarpha Northbridge I, LLC 
 
Form of List – Fiscal Year 2020 
 
B. MACHINERY 
 

 
 
 
 

Own/Other Quantity Description Nature of Use Manufacturer Model
Year of 

Manufacture
Year of 

Purchase
Purchase 

Price
Estimated 

Market Value
Own 20,700 REC 72-cell Modules Energy Generation REC 2019 2019 $2,946,000 $2,946,000
Own 863 TerraSmart Racking Energy Generation TerraSmart 2019 2019 $1,038,465 $1,038,465
Own 83 Sungrow 60kW String Inverters Energy Generation Sungrow 2019 2019 $441,900 $441,900
Own 4 Energy Storage System (Batteries, Inverters, & Transformer) Energy Generation Sungrow 2019 2019 $2,069,565 $2,069,565
Own 4 Transformers Energy Generation Cooper 2019 2019 $147,300 $147,300
Own 4 Medium & Low Voltage Switchgear Energy Generation 2019 2019 $220,950 $220,950
Own 1 DAS Energy Generation AlsoEnergy 2019 2019 $73,650 $73,650

$6,937,830 $6,937,830Subtotal Schedule B



 

AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENT IN LIEU OF PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES UNDER 
M.G.L. c. 59, § 38H(b) 

 
THIS AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES UNDER M.G.L. c. 59, § 

38H(b) (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of April 22, 2019 by and between 
Syncarpha Northbridge II, LLC (“Developer”), the TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE, a municipal 
corporation duly established by law and located in Worcester County, Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts (the “Town”).  Developer and the Town may also be referred to collectively as 
the “Parties,” and individually as a “Party.”  

WHEREAS, Developer plans to build, own and operate a metered, ground-mounted 
solar photovoltaic facility, anticipated to have an estimated nameplate capacity of approximately 
6.747 megawatts (“MW”), direct current (“DC”), and 4.98 MW, alternating current (“AC”), 
(such facility, as further defined below, the “Project”), on an approximately 30+/- acre portion of 
an approximately 57.24+/- acre parcel of land owned by Whitinsville Redevelopment Trust 
(“Property Owner”), and located at 0 Providence Road, which land is shown on the Town of 
Northbridge Assessors’ Maps as MBLU 14/22 and having a parcel identification number of 
1502, copies of which Assessors’ Map is attached hereto as Exhibit A (said 30+/- acre portion of 
land only, hereinafter referred to as the “Property”);  

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the Parties that Developer make annual payments to the 
Town for the term of this Agreement in lieu of personal property taxes for the Project in 
accordance with G.L. c.59, §38H(b), and any and all applicable regulations promulgated pursuant 
thereto; and  

WHEREAS, except as provided herein, the Parties intend that, during the term of the 
Agreement, Developer will not be assessed for personal property taxes for the Project, and this 
Agreement will provide for the exclusive payments in lieu of such taxes during the term hereof; 
provided, however, that this Agreement does not include and shall not affect any other taxes or 
fees that may be owed now or in the future by Developer and Property Owner, including, but not 
limited to, real property taxes for the Property (including buildings and, excluding the Project, 
fixtures and improvements located thereon), and taxes for personal property other than the 
Project, which taxes, if any, shall continue to be assessed by the Town in accordance with 
applicable laws and regulations.  

NOW THEREFORE, in exchange for the mutual commitments and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties agree 
as follows: 
 

1. Payment in Lieu of Personal Property Taxes.  Developer agrees to make annual 
payments to the Town in lieu of personal property taxes attributable to the Project for a period of 
twenty (20) consecutive fiscal years (July 1-June 30).  Each annual payment will be in the 
amount of $7,500 per MW (DC).  Assuming a Project nameplate capacity of 7.495 MW (DC) 
and 4.98 MW (AC), annual payments shall be as set forth in Exhibit B (each, an “Annual 
Payment”), which are subject to adjustment under Paragraph 2 for changes in such capacity.  

mwetherbee
Highlight



 

Each Annual Payment will be paid on a fiscal year basis in four (4) equal (or, in the Town’s 
reasonable discretion in order to conform payments to the Board of Assessor’s valuation of the 
Project, slightly unequal) quarterly installments, each of which shall be due on or before August 
1, November 1, February 1, and May 1 (each a “Quarterly Payment Date”) of each fiscal year.  
Each quarterly payment amount and due date will be noted on a tax bill to be issued by the Town 
to the Developer, provided that any failure of the Town to issue such a bill shall not relieve 
Developer of its obligation to make timely payments hereunder, and provided further that if no 
bill is issued, Developer shall be in compliance with its payment obligations if it makes all 
quarterly installments (for which no bill has been issued by the Town) in equal installments by 
the dates aforesaid.    

 
Annual Payments shall commence with the first quarterly installment due on the first 

Quarterly Payment Date immediately following the quarter in which the Project achieves 
commercial operation and is delivering power to the electrical distribution system (the 
“Commencement Date”); and shall end with the last quarterly installment due on May 1 (the last 
Quarterly Payment Date of a fiscal year) of the twentieth (20th) fiscal year after the 
Commencement Date, provided that if the Commencement Date was a date other than August 1, 
the Annual Payment for the fiscal year in which the Commencement Date occurs shall be pro-
rated for such fiscal year, and the term of this Agreement shall be extended so that the Town 
receives a total of eighty (80) quarterly installment payments.   

 
Other than as provided in Paragraph 2, Developer agrees that the Annual Payments will 

not be reduced for any reason (including without limitation on account of a depreciation factor, 
revaluation or reduction in the Town’s tax rate, or legislative action fixing or otherwise setting 
taxes or payments in lieu thereof for photovoltaic solar facilities), and the Town agrees that the 
Annual Payments will not be increased (including on account of an inflation factor, revaluation or 
increase in the Town’s tax rate or assessment percentage beyond that anticipated by the Parties).  
Developer hereby waives, during the term of this Agreement, any rights it may have otherwise 
had in the absence of this Agreement to seek, for any reason and in any forum, an abatement or 
reduction of taxes assessed for the Project, and therefore, hereby waives any such rights with 
respect to any payments in lieu of taxes assessed in accordance with the provisions of this 
Agreement. 
 

2. Adjustments to Annual Payments.  Adjustments to Annual Payments shall be 
made, if at all, only in accordance with this Paragraph 2. 

 
a. DC Nameplate Capacity Changes.  If, as of the date Developer receives from the 

local electric utility authorization to interconnect and commence operations of the 
Project (the “Commercial Operations Date”), the installed DC nameplate capacity of 
the Project (the “DC Capacity”) is more or less than the DC Capacity set forth in 
Paragraph 1, the Annual Payments reflected in Exhibit B shall be increased (if more) 
or decreased (if less) by the unit price of $7,500.00 per MW (DC) for each MW (or 
portion thereof) change in DC Capacity.  If after the Commercial Operations Date, as 
a result of the addition, replacement or enhancement of Project equipment, 
improvements or other property, the DC Capacity is increased, the Annual Payments 



 

shall be increased for each MW increase in DC Capacity.   
 
 
b. Notice of Commercial Operations Date and Changes in Capacity.  Within fourteen 

(14) days following the Commercial Operations Date, Developer shall provide written 
notice to the Town certifying such date and the DC Capacity of the Project as installed 
as of that date.  Within fourteen (14) days of the addition, replacement, or 
enhancement of Project equipment, improvements or other property resulting in a 
change to the DC Capacity, Developer shall provide written notice to the Town 
describing, in reasonable detail, the equipment, improvements or other property 
added, replaced, or enhanced; the resulting change in DC Capacity; and a proposed 
adjustment to Annual Payments in accordance with Paragraph 2. 

 
3. Inventory.  Attached to this Agreement as Exhibit C is a preliminary State Tax 

Form 2 (Form of List) for the Project, representing the preliminary inventory (the “Inventory”) of 
the improvements, equipment and other property anticipated to be incorporated in the Project, 
together with estimated fair market values for each improvement and item of equipment or 
property.  Only property necessary or incidental to the production of electricity shall be included 
in the Project and Inventory.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the 
Project, and thus the Annual Payments hereunder, shall not include (i) buildings or, (ii) excluding 
the Project, fixtures and improvements constituting “Real Property,” as defined in M.G.L. c. 59, § 
2A(a).   

 
Within thirty (30) days after the Commercial Operations Date, Developer shall submit an 

updated Inventory (if different from the Inventory in Exhibit C) using State Tax Form 2 (Form of 
List).  Developer will update the Inventory annually as of January 1 of each year, and an 
updated written Inventory, referred to as an Annual Inventory Update, will be provided to the 
Town on or before February 1 of each year.  Failure of Developer to include all equipment and 
other personal property in the Inventory or any Inventory Update shall constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement, subject to the termination and cure provisions set forth in Section 14.  
The Town acting through its officers, employees, consultants, agents and attorneys, will have the 
right periodically, during normal business hours and upon reasonable advance notice to 
Developer, to inspect the Project and review documents in possession of Developer that relate to 
the Project and the Inventory to verify the Inventory and Developer’s compliance with this 
Agreement. 

 
In addition, the Developer shall, upon signing this Agreement, provide the Town with a 

copy of Developer’s interconnection application filed with the local electric utility (or if such 
application has not been filed, within fourteen (14) days after it is filed), and a copy of its 
interconnection agreement with such utility within fourteen (14) days after it has been signed by 
the utility and Developer.  Developer shall also provide the Town any future amendments to 
such application or interconnection agreement within fourteen (14) days after the amendments to 
the application are filed by the Developer and the amendments to the interconnection agreement 
are signed by the utility and Developer.    
 



 

4. Payment Collection.  In addition to such rights and remedies available in this 
Agreement, all statutory rights and remedies available to the Town for the collection of taxes 
shall also be available to the Town for the collection of Annual Payments hereunder, including, 
but not limited to, the rights and remedies provided in G.L. c. 59 and G.L. c. 60, and all such 
rights and remedies are hereby reserved notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein.  
Accordingly, for example, if and to the extent deemed necessary by the Town for assessment or 
collection of Annual Payments, the Project may, at the Town’s election, be deemed personal 
property unintentionally omitted from annual assessment under G.L. c. 59, § 75, or “Real 
Property,” as defined in G.L. c. 59, § 2A(a).  All late payments shall accrue interest at 14 
percent per annum.  Furthermore, if Developer breaches its payment obligations under this 
Agreement, Developer shall pay the reasonable attorneys’ fees, court and other costs incurred by 
the Town in the collection of the unpaid amounts.   

 
5. Tax Status.  The Town agrees that during the term of this Agreement, the Town 

will not assess Developer for any personal property taxes for the Project, and the Town agrees 
that this Agreement will exclusively govern the payments of such taxes (and payments in lieu of 
such taxes) that Developer will be obligated to make to the Town with respect to the Project, 
provided, however, that this Agreement will not affect any other taxes owed by the Developer or 
Property Owner, including, but not limited to, real property taxes for the Property (including any 
buildings and, excluding the Project, fixtures and improvements located thereon), and taxes for 
personal property not incorporated into the Project, which taxes, if any, shall be assessed in 
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.  Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to 
the contrary in this Agreement, upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, the 
Town shall not be bound by any valuation/payment amount, schedule or formula set forth in this 
Agreement in the assessment of future taxes for the Project after the date of such expiration or 
termination.    
 

6. Assignment.  Developer shall not assign this Agreement in whole or in part 
without the advance written consent of the Town, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
except that Developer may (i) collaterally assign the Agreement to an entity providing financing 
for construction, operation or maintenance of the Project with advance written notice to the 
Town, provided that Developer shall not be relieved of its obligations hereunder; or (ii) with 
advance written notice to the Town, assign the Agreement to an entity no less creditworthy than 
Developer to whom Developer has sold or transferred all its interests in the Project, provided that, 
upon an assignment under clause “ii,” above, Developer shall be deemed as having represented 
and warranted to the Town that the assignee has the financial ability to comply with all 
obligations of Developer hereunder; and provided further that, notwithstanding the foregoing, 
other than a collateral assignment under clause “i,” above, Developer shall not assign this 
Agreement to any person or entity that is not eligible to enter into this Agreement under G.L. c. 
59, § 38H(b), and/or who is unable to make all the representations and warranties of Developer 
contained herein.   
 

7. Invalidity.  The Parties understand and agree that this Agreement shall be void 
and unenforceable if (a) this Agreement, or any material portion of this Agreement, is determined 
or declared by a court or agency of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, void, or unenforceable; 



 

(b) Developer is determined or declared by a court or agency of competent jurisdiction to not be a 
“generation company” or “wholesale generation company” as those terms are used and/or defined 
in G.L. c. 59 § 38H(b), and G.L. c. 164 § 1; and/or (c) this Agreement has not been approved by 
Town Meeting.  In the event this Agreement is declared void in accordance with this Paragraph 
7, any payments due and/or made to the Town before the date of such declaration shall be and 
remain property of the Town, and to the extent permitted by law, shall be deemed full satisfaction 
of the taxes in lieu of which they were made.  
 

8. Notices.  All notices, consents, requests, or other communications provided for or 
permitted to be given hereunder by a Party must be in writing and will be deemed to have been 
properly given or served upon the personal delivery thereof, via courier delivery service, or by 
mail in a manner of delivery that results in a confirmation of receipt, such as certified mail or 
federal express.  Such notices shall be addressed or delivered to the Parties at their respective 
addresses shown below.  
 
 To: Developer  
  

Syncarpha Northbridge II, LLC 

250 West 57th Street, Suite 701  

New York, New York 10107 

 
 
 To: Town of Northbridge 
 

Attn: Robert Fitzgerald 
Northbridge Town Assessor 

7 Main Street 

Whitinsville, MA 01588 

 
Any such addresses for the giving of notices may be changed by either Party by giving 

written notice as provided above to the other Party.  Notice given by counsel to a Party shall be 
effective as notice from such Party.  

9. Applicable Law.  This Agreement will be made and interpreted in accordance 
with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts without regard to the law of “conflicts of 
laws.”  The Parties each consent to the jurisdiction of the Massachusetts courts or other 
applicable agencies of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts regarding any and all matters, 
including interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement or any of its provisions.  Venue for all 
actions brought hereunder shall be (solely) the state courts located in Suffolk County, 
Massachusetts, or if different, the county in which the Town is located.  Developer agrees to 
accept service of process, including civil complaints, by certified mail at the address indicated in 



 

Paragraph 8 (Notices). 
 

10. Force Majeure.  As used herein, an event of Force Majeure is an event beyond 
the reasonable control of the Parties, and includes, without limitation, the following events:  
 

a. Acts of god including floods, winds, storms, earthquake, fire or other natural calamity;  
 

b. Acts of War or other civil insurrection or terrorism; or  
 

c. Taking by eminent domain by any governmental entity of all or a portion of the 
Property or the Project.  

 
In the event that a Force Majeure occurs during the term of this Agreement that renders the 

Project wholly or substantially unable to produce electricity for a period of more than ninety (90) 
days, Developer may, at its election, terminate the Agreement following expiration of such 90-
day period by written notice to the Town, provided that such termination shall be effective no 
earlier than the end (June 30) of the fiscal year in which said notice is received by the Town, and 
provided further that the Project will thereafter be assessed and taxed as if this Agreement does 
not exist.   

Notwithstanding the foregoing or any Force Majeure event, Developer shall continue to 
make Annual Payments without abatement or reduction until this Agreement is terminated, if at 
all, in accordance with this Paragraph 10.    

11. Certification of Tax Compliance.  Pursuant to G.L. c. 62C, § 49A, Developer by 
its duly authorized representative, certifies under pains and penalties of perjury that it has 
complied with all laws of the commonwealth relating to taxes, reporting of employees and 
contractors, and withholding and remitting of child support.  

 
12. Covenants, Representations and Warranties of Developer.  

a. During the term of the Agreement, Developer will not do any of the following: 

1. convey by sale, lease, assignment or otherwise any interest in the 
Property or Project to any tax-exempt entity or organization, including 
without limitation a charitable organization pursuant to G.L. c.59, § 5 
(Clause Third); 

2. fail to pay the Town all amounts due hereunder when due in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement;  

3. seek, for any reason, an abatement or reduction of any of the 
amounts assessed in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, and 
Developer hereby waives, during the full term of this Agreement, any 
rights it may have otherwise had to seek such an abatement or reduction; 
or  



 

4. seek to amend or terminate this Agreement on account of the 
enactment of any law or regulation or a change in any existing law or 
regulation the intent or effect of which is to fix or limit in any way the 
method for calculating payments-in-lieu-of-taxes for renewable energy 
facilities. 

 
  b. Developer represents and warrants: 

1. It is a corporation or other business entity duly organized, validly 
existing and in good standing under the laws of the state in which it was 
formed, and if a foreign corporation, is registered with the Massachusetts 
Secretary of State, and has full power and authority to carry on its business 
as it is now being conducted. 

2. This Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation 
of Developer enforceable in accordance with its terms, except to the extent 
that the enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency 
or other laws affecting other enforcement of creditors’ rights generally or 
by general equitable principles.   

3. It has taken all necessary action to authorize and approve the 
execution and delivery of this Agreement. 

 

 



 

4. The person executing this Agreement on behalf of Developer has 
the full power and authority to bind it to each and every provision of this 
Agreement.  

5. Developer is a “generation company” or “wholesale generation 
company” as those terms are used and defined in G.L. c. 59, § 38H(b) and 
G.L. c. 164 § 1. 

6. Developer does not qualify for a manufacturing classification 
exemption pursuant to G.L. c. 59, § 5(16)(3). 

7. The documents and information furnished by Developer to the 
Town in connection with this Agreement, including but not limited to the 
Inventory and any update thereto, is true, accurate and complete in all 
material respects. 

8. The performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement 
will not violate or result in a breach or default of any agreement or 
instrument to which Developer is a party or to which Developer is 
otherwise bound. 

13. Entire Agreement.  The Parties agree that this is the entire, fully integrated 
Agreement between them with respect to payments in lieu of taxes for the Project, and that there 
are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement.  

 
14. Termination by Town.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 

Agreement, the Town may terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) days written notice to 
Developer if: 

 
a. The Developer fails to make timely payments required under this Agreement, 

unless such payment is received by the Town within the 30-day notice period with 
interest as stated in this Agreement, provided, however, that the Town may 
nonetheless terminate this Agreement if such failure occurs more than three times 
in any rolling 365-day period, even if each such failure is cured within the 30-day 
notice period; 

b. The Developer has filed, or has had filed against it, a petition in Bankruptcy, or is 
otherwise insolvent;  

c. The Developer otherwise materially breaches this Agreement, unless such breach 
is cured within the 30-day notice period, including payment to the Town of any 
damages arising from such breach, provided, however, that the Town may 
nonetheless terminate this Agreement if Developer materially breaches this 
Agreement more than three times in any rolling 365-day period, even if each such 
breach is cured within the 30-day notice period; and/or 



 

d. The Developer’s representations set forth in Paragraph 12 were untrue, inaccurate, 
or incomplete in material respects at the time they were made. 

15. Payment of Town Costs.  Upon execution of this Agreement, the Developer shall 
pay the Town by bank or certified check, or wire transfer, the lump-sum minimum amount of 
$5,000, representing payment of costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, incurred by the 
Town in the negotiation of this Agreement. 
 

 16. Developer’s federal tax identification number: 83-1800580 
 
 
  



 

Executed under seal by the undersigned as of the day and year first written above, each of 
whom represents that it is fully and duly authorized to act on behalf of and bind its principals.  

SYNCARPHA NORTHBRIDGE II, LLC 
 
 
By: __________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________   
 
Date: ________________________ 

 

 

TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 
 
 
By: __________________________   By: __________________________                    
 
Title: ________________________   Title: ________________________  
  
Date: ________________________   Date: ________________________                    
 
  
By: __________________________   By: __________________________                    
 
Title: ________________________   Title: ________________________  
  
Date: ________________________   Date: _________________________ 

 
By: __________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________   
 
Date: ________________________ 
 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

THE PROPERTY 
 

 



 

EXHIBIT B 

ANNUAL PAYMENTS SCHEDULE 

 

Contract 
Year

System Size
MW (DC)

Annual 
Amount per 

MW (DC)

Annual 
Ammount

Quarterly 
Payment

1 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
2 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
3 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
4 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
5 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
6 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
7 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
8 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
9 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651

10 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
11 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
12 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
13 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
14 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
15 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
16 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
17 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
18 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
19 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651
20 6.747 $7,500 $50,603 $12,651



 

EXHIBIT C 

FORM OF LIST 

Town of Northbridge Assessors 
7 Main Street 
Whitinsville, MA 01588 
 
 
Syncarpha Northbridge II, LLC 
 
Form of List – Fiscal Year 2020 
 
B. MACHINERY 
 

 
 
 
 

Own/Other Quantity Description Nature of Use Manufacturer Model
Year of 

Manufacture
Year of 

Purchase
Purchase 

Price
Estimated 

Market Value
Own 18,234 JA Solar 72-cell Modules Energy Generation JA Solar 2019 2019 $2,946,000 $2,946,000
Own 760 TerraSmart Racking Energy Generation TerraSmart 2019 2019 $1,038,465 $1,038,465
Own 83 Sungrow 60kW String Inverters Energy Generation Sungrow 2019 2019 $441,900 $441,900
Own 4 Energy Storage System (Batteries, Inverters, & Transformer) Energy Generation Sungrow 2019 2019 $2,069,565 $2,069,565
Own 4 Transformers Energy Generation Cooper 2019 2019 $147,300 $147,300
Own 4 Medium & Low Voltage Switchgear Energy Generation 2019 2019 $220,950 $220,950
Own 1 DAS Energy Generation AlsoEnergy 2019 2019 $73,650 $73,650

$6,937,830 $6,937,830Subtotal Schedule B








	2019-04-22 - Northbridge I - PILOT (002).pdf
	Syncarpha Northbridge I, LLC
	a. During the term of the Agreement, Developer will not do any of the following:
	1. convey by sale, lease, assignment or otherwise any interest in the Property or Project to any tax-exempt entity or organization, including without limitation a charitable organization pursuant to G.L. c.59, § 5 (Clause Third);
	2. fail to pay the Town all amounts due hereunder when due in accordance with the terms of this Agreement;
	3. seek, for any reason, an abatement or reduction of any of the amounts assessed in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, and Developer hereby waives, during the full term of this Agreement, any rights it may have otherwise had to seek such an...
	4. seek to amend or terminate this Agreement on account of the enactment of any law or regulation or a change in any existing law or regulation the intent or effect of which is to fix or limit in any way the method for calculating payments-in-lieu-of-...


	2019-04-22 - Northbridge II - PILOT (002).pdf
	Syncarpha Northbridge II, LLC
	a. During the term of the Agreement, Developer will not do any of the following:
	1. convey by sale, lease, assignment or otherwise any interest in the Property or Project to any tax-exempt entity or organization, including without limitation a charitable organization pursuant to G.L. c.59, § 5 (Clause Third);
	2. fail to pay the Town all amounts due hereunder when due in accordance with the terms of this Agreement;
	3. seek, for any reason, an abatement or reduction of any of the amounts assessed in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, and Developer hereby waives, during the full term of this Agreement, any rights it may have otherwise had to seek such an...
	4. seek to amend or terminate this Agreement on account of the enactment of any law or regulation or a change in any existing law or regulation the intent or effect of which is to fix or limit in any way the method for calculating payments-in-lieu-of-...





